

BUSINESS OF THE ASSEMBLY

2020-2021



Tenth Assembly—Sittings 3 November 2020 to 2 December 2021

CONTENTS

Statistical Summary	1
Bills	1
Miscellaneous	1
Motions	2
Bills—Progress Details	4
Committees	7
Standing Committees	7
Administration and Procedure	7
Economy and Gender and Economic Equality	9
Education and Community Inclusion	10
Environment, Climate Change and Biodiversity	11
Health and Community Wellbeing	12
Justice and Community Safety	13
Legislative Scrutiny Role	15
Planning, Transport and City Services	16
Public Accounts	19
Select Committees	21
COVID-19 2021 Pandemic Response—Select Committee (Dissolved)	21
Drugs of Dependence (Personal Use) Amendment Bill 2021—Select Committee (Dissolved)	22
Ninth Assembly Committees—Reports/Government responses tabled in Tenth	
Assembly	
Committee Reports—Responses	
Government Responses	
Ninth Assembly	
Tenth Assembly	
Other Responses	
Motions	
Assembly Business	
Censure/No confidence	
Disallowance/Rejection	33
Order to table	33

Principal	33
Private Members' Business	
Speaker—Statements/Rulings	
Ministerial Statements	
Statements by Members	
Statements by Ministers	
Petitions and ministerial responses—Presentation	
Petitions	43
Ministerial responses to petitions presented in Ninth Assembly	46
Other business	46
Appendix—List of Members and Attendance Roll	48

STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BILLS

ıced48	Int
embly1	
ecutive38	
vate Members'9	
34	Pa
embly1	
ecutive31	
vate Members'2	
EOUS	MISCELL
; 	Sit
sitting weeks	
sitting days36	
urs of sitting264	
n which—	Da
least one committee met175	
ournment motions debated34	
51	Vo
ns—	Pe
sented48	
natures	
nisterial responses25 ³	
erred to Committee33	
By leave3	
Pursuant to standing order 994	
Pursuant to standing order 99A26	

¹ Includes meal breaks and suspensions of sittings

² Includes 30 e-petitions

³ Covering 38 petitions

	Questions—	
	Placed on Notice Paper	574
	Without notice	498
	Supplementaries	497
	Supplementaries pursuant to standing order 113B	487
	Ministerial statements	77
	Speaker—Rulings/Statements	8
	Statements—	
	By Members	10
	By Ministers	5
	Suspension of standing orders—	
	Passed	22
	Negatived	3
	Committee reports—	
	Tabled	45
	Ninth Assembly	4
	Tenth Assembly	41
	Non-sitting circulation—Yet to be tabled	2
	Government responses	24
	Ninth Assembly	12
	Tenth Assembly	12
	ACT Ombudsman's response	1
	Private Members' responses	2
	Speaker's Responses	2
	Auditor-General's reports—	
	Tabled	17
	Non-sitting circulation—Yet to be tabled	1
Моті	IONS	
	Assembly business	44
	Censure/No confidence	2
	Condolence	1
	Disallowance	1
	Order to table	1
	Principal	28
	Private Members'	68

Reports be noted/adopted	30
To take note of papers	111
To take note of petitions/ministerial responses	23

BILLS—PROGRESS DETAILS

Before the Assembly	PMB	Introduced
Civil Law (Sale of Residential Property) Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	09/11/21
COAG Legislation Amendment Bill 2021		04/08/21
Corrections Management Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	25/11/21
Crimes (Policing) Legislation Amendment Bill 2021		01/12/21
Drugs of Dependence (Personal Use) Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	11/02/21
Electoral Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	02/12/21
Financial Management Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2)		01/12/21
Government Procurement Amendment Bill 2021		10/11/21
Public Health Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2)		02/12/21
Public Place Names Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	30/11/21
Road Transport (Safety and Traffic Management) Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2)	PMB	22/06/21
Road Transport Legislation Amendment Bill 2021		05/08/21
Road Transport Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2)		01/12/21

	PMB				
Bills Passed	*	Introduced	Passed	Act No	LR
	++				
Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021	++	09/02/21	22/04/21	A2021-8	28/04/21
Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2021-2022	++	06/10/21	30/11/21	A2021-29	10/12/21
Appropriation Bill 2020-2021	++	09/02/21	22/04/21	A2021-7	28/04/21
Appropriation Bill 2021-2022	++	06/10/21	30/11/21	A2021-28	10/12/21
Carers Recognition Bill 2021	PMB *	23/06/21	02/12/21	A2021-34	10/12/21
City Renewal Authority and Suburban Land Agency Amendment Bill 2021	++	06/10/21	11/11/21	A2021-26	17/11/21
Civil Law (Sale of Residential Property) Amendment Bill 2021		09/11/21	01/12/21	A2021-32	10/12/21
Civil Law (Wrongs) Amendment Bill 2021		12/05/21	23/06/21	A2021-15	30/06/21
Courts and Other Justice Legislation Amendment Bill 2021		20/04/21	03/06/21	A2021-13	09/06/21
COVID-19 Emergency Response (Check-in Information) Amendment Bill 2021	*	04/08/21	16/09/21	A2021-20	21/09/21
COVID-19 Emergency Response Legislation Amendment Bill 2020 (No 3) [Act Citation: COVID- 19 Emergency Response Legislation Amendment Act 2021]	++	02/12/20	10/02/21	A2021-1	19/02/21
Crimes (Stealthing) Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	22/04/21	07/10/21	A2021-23	13/10/21
Crimes Legislation Amendment Bill 2020 [Act Citation: Crimes Legislation Amendment Act 2021]	*	03/12/20	31/03/21	2021-6	08/04/21
Crimes Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 [Act Citation: Crimes Legislation Amendment Act 2021 (No 2)]		24/06/21	04/08/21	A2021-18	11/08/21
Domestic Animals Legislation Amendment Bill 2021		31/03/21	13/05/21	A2021-11	19/05/21

PMB Private Members' Business

AB Assembly Business

*with amendments

++ Committee Inquiry

LR Legislation Register

	PMB				
Bills Passed	*	Introduced	Passed	Act No	LR
Dinis i dissed	++	miroduced	i usseu	Activo	LIX
Domestic Violence Agencies Amendment Bill 2021		23/06/21	16/09/21	A2021-21	21/09/21
Emergencies Amendment Bill 2021		09/11/21	30/11/21	A2021-30	10/12/21
Financial Management Amendment Bill 2021		16/09/21	16/09/21	A2021-22	21/09/21
Justice and Community Safety Legislation	*	03/12/20	11/02/21	A2021-3	19/02/21
Amendment Bill 2020 [Act Citation: Justice and					
Community Safety Legislation Amendment Bill					
2021]					
Justice and Community Safety Legislation	*	11/11/21	01/12/21	A2021-33	10/12/21
Amendment Bill 2021 [Act Citation: Justice and					
Community Safety Legislation Amendment Act					
2021 (No 2)]					
Loose-fill Asbestos Legislation Amendment Bill		03/06/21	24/06/21	A2021-16	01/07/21
2021					
Operational Efficiencies (COVID-19) Legislation	*	16/09/21	07/10/21	A2021-24	13/10/21
Amendment Bill 2021					
Planning and Development Amendment Bill 2021		10/02/21	11/02/21	A2021-2	19/02/21
Planning and Unit Titles Legislation Amendment		02/12/20	31/03/21	A2021-5	08/04/21
Bill 2020 [Act Citation: Planning and Unit Titles					
Legislation Amendment Act 2021]					
Planning and Unit Titles Legislation Amendment		08/10/21	11/11/21	A2021-25	17/11/21
Bill 2021 [Act Citation: Planning and Unit Titles					
Legislation Amendment Act 2021 (No 2)]					
Plastic Reduction Bill 2020 [Act Citation: Plastic		02/12/20	30/03/21	A2021-4	08/04/21
Reduction Act 2021]					
Public Health Amendment Bill 2021		10/11/21	01/12/21	A2021-31	10/12/21
Remuneration Tribunal Amendment Bill 2021	AB	11/11/21	25/11/21	A2021-27	10/12/21
Revenue Legislation Amendment Bill 2021		31/03/21	12/05/21	A2021-10	19/05/21
Road Transport (Safety and Traffic Management)		13/05/21	22/06/21	A2021-14	01/07/21
Amendment Bill 2021					
Senior Practitioner Amendment Bill 2021		24/06/21	03/08/21	A2021-17	11/08/21
Statute Law Amendment Bill 2021		20/04/21	02/06/21	A2021-12	09/06/21
Utilities Amendment Bill 2021		20/04/21	11/05/21	A2021-9	19/05/21
Work Health and Safety Amendment Bill 2021 [Act		24/06/21	05/08/21	A2021-19	11/08/21
Citation: Work Health and Safety Amendment Act					
2021]					

Inquired into by Committee	PMB *	Introduced	Date of Referral	Date Report Presented
Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021		09/02/21	09/02/21	20/04/21
Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2021-2022		06/10/21	06/10/21	12/11/21
Appropriation Bill 2020-2021		09/02/21	09/02/21	20/04/21
Appropriation Bill 2021-2022		06/10/21	06/10/21	12/11/21
Carers Recognition Bill 2021		23/06/21	23/06/21	16/09/21
COVID-19 Emergency Response Legislation Amendment Bill 2020 (No 3) [Act Citation: COVID-19		02/12/20	02/12/20	09/02/21

Inquired into by Committee	PMB *	Introduced	Date of Referral	Date Report Presented
Emergency Response Legislation Amendment Act 2021]				
Drugs of Dependence (Personal Use) Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	11/02/21	11/02/21	30/11/21
Electoral Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	2/12/21	2/12/21	
Financial Management Bill 2021 (No 2)		1/12/21	1/12/21	
Public Health Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2)		2/12/21	2/12/21	
Road Transport Legislation Amendment Bill 2021		05/08/21	06/08/21	30/11/21
Road Transport (Safety and Traffic Management) Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2)	PMB	22/05/21	22/05/21	30/11/21

Agreement in Principle Negatived	PMB *	Introduced	Date Negatived
Bail Amendment Bill 2021	PMB	05/08/21	10/11/21

COMMITTEES

STANDING COMMITTEES

ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURE

Formation: 3 November 2020
Pursuant to: Standing order 16

Committee Members: The Speaker (Ms Joy Burch—Chair)

Mr Jeremy Hanson CSC (Deputy Chair from 30 November 2020)

Mr Andrew Braddock

Ms Suzanne Orr

Terms of reference:

(a) A Standing Committee on Administration and Procedure is established at the commencement of each Assembly to:

- undertake self-referred inquiries or inquiries referred by the Assembly and, in addition, in the third year of an Assembly term the committee shall inquire into and report on the operation of the standing orders and continuing resolutions of the Assembly with a view to ensuring that the practices and procedures of the Assembly remain relevant and reflect best practice;
- (ii) advise the Speaker on:
 - (A) Members' entitlements including facilities and services:
 - (B) the operation of the transcription service (Hansard);
 - (C) the availability to the public of Assembly documents;
 - (D) the operation of the Assembly library;
- (iii) arrange the order of private Members' business and Assembly business; and ⁴
- (iv) as required by continuing resolutions of the Assembly, consider, inquire and report on matters relating to citizen's right of reply, claims of parliamentary privilege, reports of the Commissioner for Standards and the Ethics and Integrity Adviser and the implementation of Latimer House Principles;⁵
- (b) the Committee shall consist of:
 - (i) the Speaker;
 - (ii) the Government whip;

⁴ Amended 30 March 2021

⁵ Inserted 30 March 2021

- (iii) the Opposition whip; and
- (iv) a representative of the crossbench (or if a single party, the whip of that party);
- (ba) should a whip be unable to attend a meeting, the Party nominated deputy whip may attend in their place;⁶
- (c) the Speaker shall be the Chair of the Committee; and
- (d) the Committee shall have the power to consider and make use of the evidence and records of the Standing Committee on Administration and Procedure appointed during the previous Assemblies.

Inquiries:

- Evaluation of trial of estimates being considered by standing committees (referred 3 June 2021).
- Proposed amendment to standing order 113A (referred 16 September 2021).

Inquiries completed—Reports/Paper:

- Report 1—Report on a referral to the Commissioner for Standards (tabled 3 December 2020).
- Report 2—Report on the Conduct of Mr Coe, MLA (referred 12 October 2020, tabled 9 February 2021, response to Recommendation 1 tabled 30 March 2021).
- Report 3—Review of Members' Code of Conduct and the Declaration of Members Interests Form (tabled 30 March 2021).
- Report 4—Review of standing orders for the Tenth Assembly (tabled 30 March 2021).
- Report 5—Report on the Conduct of Mr Milligan, MLA (tabled 24 June 2021).
- Report 6—Report on the Conduct of Mr Parton, MLA (tabled 5 August 2021, response to Recommendation 1 made 5 August 2021).
- Review of Committee Support function—Report to the Standing Committee on Administration and Procedure, prepared by Dr Rosemary Laing, Specialist Adviser (referred 8 April 2021, published 19 August 2021, tabled 6 October 2021).

Statements made pursuant to standing order 246A:

- Interaction between the Assembly and its committees (3 August 2021).
- Review of Committee Support—
 - Function—Report to the Standing Committee on Administration and Procedure (6 October 2021).
 - Approach to recommendations of the review—Position paper prepared by the Clerk of the Legislative Assembly (11 November 2021).
 - Services (22 April 2021).

-

⁶ Inserted 29 November 2018

ECONOMY AND GENDER AND ECONOMIC EQUALITY

Formation: 2 December 2020

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Ms Leanne Castley, (Chair from 24 June 2021),

Ms Suzanne Orr (Deputy Chair from 8 December 2020),

Mr Johnathan Davis (Member from 2 December 2020).

Past Member: Ms Nicole Lawder (Chair from 8 December 2020 to 24 June 2021).

Resolution of establishment:

The Assembly resolved to establish a Standing Committee on Economy and Gender and Economic Equality on 2 December 2020 (amended on 11 February, 30 March, 22 April, 16 September and 9 November 2021).

Inquiries:

- Future of the working week (self-referred 4 May 2021).
- Memorialisation through public commemoration (self-referred 15 June 2021).

Inquiries completed—Reports/Government response:

- Report 1—Inquiry into COVID-19 Emergency Response Legislation Amendment Bill 2020 (No 3) (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, inquiry undertaken 8 December 2020, published 1 February 2021, tabled 9 February 2021, Government response tabled 10 February 2021).
- Report 2—Report on inquiries into Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20 and ACT Budget 2020-21 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, published 9 April 2021, tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Budget 2020-21 tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Annual and Financial Reports tabled 3 August 2021).
- Report 3—Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly)
 Bill 2021-2022 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, tabled 11 November 2021,
 Government response tabled 23 November 2021).

Bills referred upon presentation, pursuant to resolution of establishment:

- COAG Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 4 August 2021—resolved not to undertake inquiry 10 August 2021).
- COVID-19 Emergency Response Legislation Amendment Bill 2020 (No. 3) (presented 2 December 2020—inquiry undertaken 8 December 2020).
- Government Procurement Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 10 November 2021— resolved not to undertake an inquiry 16 November 2021).
- Remuneration Tribunal Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 11 November 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 16 November 2021).
- Revenue Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 31 March 2021—resolved not to undertake inquiry 7 April 2021).

 Work Health and Safety Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 24 June 2021—resolved not to undertake inquiry 7 July 2021).

Petition referred pursuant to standing order 99: Petition 6-21—Monumental women (referred 2 June 2021).

Petition referred pursuant to standing order 99A: Petition 36-21—Federal income support (referred 16 September 2021).

Statements made pursuant to standing order 246A:

- Consideration of statutory appointments—
 - Period 1 July to 31 December 2020 (Ninth and Tenth Assemblies) (9 February 2021).
 - Period 1 January to 30 June 2021 (5 August 2021).
- Future of the working week—Inquiry—
 - (13 May 2021).
 - Discussion paper (23 June 2021).
- Memorialisation through public commemoration—Inquiry (23 June 2021).

EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY INCLUSION

Formation: 2 December 2020

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Mr Michael Pettersson (Chair from 8 December 2020),

Mr Johnathan Davis (Deputy Chair from 8 December 2020),

Mr Peter Cain (Member from 2 December 2020).

Resolution of establishment:

The Assembly resolved to establish a Standing Committee on Education and Community Inclusion on 2 December 2020 (amended on 11 February, 30 March, 22 April, 16 September and 9 November 2021).

Inquiries:

- Auditor-General's Report No 6/2021—Teaching Quality in ACT Public Schools (referred 5 October 2021).
- Infrastructure management in ACT schools (self-referred 2 February 2021).
- Racial vilification (referred 11 November 2021).

Inquiries completed—Reports/Government responses:

 Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020 and Appropriation Bill 2020-2021 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, published 7 April 2021, tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Budget 2020-21 tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Annual and Financial Reports tabled 3 August 2021). Report 2—Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly)
 Bill 2021-2022 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, tabled 11 November 2021,
 Government response tabled 23 November 2021).

Bill referred pursuant to resolution of establishment: Senior Practitioner Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 24 June 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 29 June 2021).

Statements made pursuant to standing order 246A:

- Auditor-General's Report No 6/2021—Teaching Quality in ACT Public Schools—Inquiry (30 November 2021).
- Consideration of statutory appointments—Period 1 July to 31 December 2020 (Ninth and Tenth Assemblies) (30 March 2021).
- Infrastructure management in ACT schools—Inquiry (10 February 2021).
- Racial vilification—Inquiry (24 November 2021).

ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE CHANGE AND BIODIVERSITY

Formation: 2 December 2020

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Dr Marisa Paterson (Chair from 8 December 2020),

Ms Clay Jo (Deputy Chair from 14 December 2021),

Ms Leanne Castley (Member from 2 December 2020).

Past Member: Mr Andrew Braddock (Deputy Chair from 8 December 2020 to

9 December 2021).

Resolution of Appointment:

The Assembly resolved to establish a Standing Committee on Environment, Climate Change and Biodiversity on 2 December 2020 (amended on 11 February, 30 March, 22 April, 16 September and 9 November 2021).

Inquiry: Renewable energy innovation in the ACT (self-referred 23 February 2021).

Inquiries completed—Reports/Government responses:

- Report 1—Report on Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20 and Estimates 2020-21 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, published 1 April 2021, tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Budget 2020-21 tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Annual and Financial Reports tabled 3 August 2021, update on Recommendation 2 tabled 5 August 2021).
- Report 2—Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly)
 Bill 2021-2022 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, tabled 11 November 2021,
 Government response tabled 23 November 2021).

Statements made pursuant to standing order 246A:

- Consideration of statutory appointments—Period 1 January to 30 June 2021 (25 November 2021).
- Renewable energy innovation in the ACT—Inquiry (30 March 2021).

HEALTH AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING

Formation: 2 December 2020

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Mr Johnathan Davis (Chair from 9 December 2020),

Mr James Milligan (Member from 30 March 2021 and Deputy Chair from

6 April 2021),

Mr Michael Pettersson (Member from 2 December 2020).

Past Member: Mrs Elizabeth Kikkert (Deputy Chair from 9 December 2020 to

30 March 2021).

Resolution of Appointment:

The Assembly resolved to establish a Standing Committee on Health and Community Wellbeing on 2 December 2020 (amended on 11 February, 30 March, 22 April, 16 September and 9 November 2021).

Inquiries:

- Health programs for children and young people—Review (self-referred 23 March 2021).
- Public Health Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) (referred 2 December 2021).

Inquiry—Discontinued: ACT alcohol, tobacco and other drug harm reduction policy and programs (referred 9 February 2021, discontinued March 2021).

Inquiries completed—Reports/Government responses:

- Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2020-2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, published 9 April 2021, tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Budget 2020-21 tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Annual and Financial Reports tabled 3 August 2021).
- Report 2—Report on Inquiry into the Carers Recognition Bill 2021 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, inquiry undertaken 6 July 2021, published 24 August 2021, tabled 16 September 2021, Government response tabled 2 December 2021).
- Report 3—Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly)
 Bill 2021-2022 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, published 12 November 2021, tabled 23 November 2021, Government response tabled 23 November 2021).

Bills referred upon presentation, pursuant to resolution of establishment:

- Carers Recognition Bill 2021 (presented 23 June 2021—inquiry undertaken 6 July 2021).
- Domestic Violence Agencies Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 23 June 2021—resolved not to undertake inquiry 6 July 2021).
- Public Health Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 10 November 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 24 November 2021).

Petitions referred pursuant to standing order 99A:

- Petition 34-21—Eating Disorder Position Statement (referred 30 November 2021).
- Petitions 25-20 and 3-21—Alcohol, tobacco and other drug treatment services (referred 9 February 2021, inquiry undertaken 9 February 2021, inquiry discontinued March 2021).

Statements made pursuant to standing order 246A:

- Consideration of statutory appointments—Standing Committee on Health, Ageing and Community Services (Ninth Assembly)—Period 1 July to 31 December 2020; Standing Committee on Health and Community Wellbeing (Tenth Assembly)—Period 1 January to 30 June 2021 (2 December 2021).
- Health programs for children and young people—Review—Inquiry (30 March 2021).
- Programs for drug harm reduction—
 - Inquiry (11 February 2021).
 - Inquiry discontinued (30 March 2021).
- Public Health Amendment Bill 2021 (1 December 2021).

JUSTICE AND COMMUNITY SAFETY

Formation: 2 December 2020

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Mr Jeremy Hanson CSC (Chair from 8 December 2020),

Dr Marisa Paterson (Deputy Chair from 8 December 2020), Mr Andrew Braddock (Member from 9 December 2021).

Past Members: Ms Jo Clay (Member from 2 December 2020 to 9 December 2021).

Resolution of establishment:

The Assembly resolved to establish a Standing Committee on Justice and Community Safety on 2 December 2020 (amended on 11 February, 30 March, 22 April, 16 September and 9 November 2021).

Inquiries:

- Community corrections (self-referred 24 June 2021).
- Electoral Amendment Bill 2021 (Bill presented 1 December 2021—inquiry undertaken 8 December 2021).
- Petition No 32-21—Human Rights Act—Breaches—Handling of complaints (No Rights Without Remedy) (Petition referred 23 November 2021).

Inquiries completed—Reports/Government responses:

- Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2020-2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, tabled 30 March 2021, Government response to Budget 2020-21 tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Annual and Financial Reports tabled 3 August 2021).
- Report 2—Inquiry into the 2020 ACT Election and the Electoral Act (referred 2 December 2020, tabled 5 August 2021).
- Report 3—Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2021-2022 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, published 12 November 2021, tabled 23 November 2021, Government response tabled 23 November 2021).

Bills referred upon presentation, pursuant to resolution of establishment:

- Bail Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 5 August 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 11 August 2021).
- Crimes Legislation Amendment Bill 2020 (presented 2 December 2020—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 8 December 2020).
- Civil Law (Sale of Residential Property) Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 9 November 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 17 November 2021).
- Civil Law (Sale of Residential Property) Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) (presented 9 November 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 17 November 2021).
- Civil Law (Wrongs) Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 12 May 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 24 May 2021).
- Courts and Other Justice Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 20 April 2021, resolved not to undertake an inquiry 28 April 2021).
- Corrections Management Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 25 November 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 8 December 2021).
- COVID-19 Emergency Response (Check-in Information) Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 4 August 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 11 August 2021).
- Crimes (Policing) Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 1 December 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 8 December 2021).
- Crimes (Stealthing) Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 22 April 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 28 April 2021).
- Crimes Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 24 June 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 30 June 2021).
- Electoral Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 1 December 2021—inquiry undertaken 8 December 2021).
- Emergencies Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 9 November 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 17 November 2021).
- Justice and Community Safety Legislation Amendment Bill 2020 (presented 2 December 2020—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 8 December 2020).

- Justice and Community Safety Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 11 November 2021 resolved not to undertake an inquiry 17 November 2021).
- Operational Efficiencies (COVID-19) Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 16 September 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 22 September 2021).
- Statute Law Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 20 April 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 28 April 2021).

Petitions referred pursuant to standing order 99A:

- Petition 24-20—Thoroughbred Park—Withdrawal of Government funding (referred to Standing Committee on Planning, Transport and City Services 2 December 2020, redirected 12 January 2021).
- Petition 32-21—Human Rights Act—Breaches—Handling of complaints (referred 23 November 2021).

Statements made pursuant to standing order 246A:

- Community corrections—Inquiry (24 June 2021).
- Consideration of statutory appointments—
 - Period 1 July to 31 December 2020 (Ninth and Tenth Assemblies) (30 March 2021).
 - Period 1 January to 30 June 2021 (5 August 2021).

LEGISLATIVE SCRUTINY ROLE

Scrutiny reports presented:

- No 1 (published 2 February 2021, tabled 9 February 2021).
- No 2 (published 24 March 2021, tabled 30 March 2021).
- No 3 (published 14 April 2021, tabled 20 April 2021).
- No 4 (published 4 May 2021, tabled 11 May 2021).
- No 5 (published 26 May 2021, tabled 2 June 2021).
- No 6 (published 15 June 2021, tabled 22 June 2021).
- No 7 (published 27 July 2021, tabled 3 August 2021).
- No 8 (published 24 August 2021, tabled 16 September 2021).
- No 9 (published 28 September 2021, tabled 6 October 2021).
- No 10 (published 2 November 2021, tabled 9 November 2021).
- No 11 (published 19 November 2021, tabled 23 November 2021).

Statement made pursuant to standing order 246A: Timeframe for Government responses (22 June 2021).

PLANNING, TRANSPORT AND CITY SERVICES

Formation: 2 December 2020

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Ms Jo Clay (Chair from 8 December 2020),

Ms Suzanne Orr (Deputy Chair from 8 December 2020),

Mr Mark Parton (Member from 2 December 2020).

Resolution of establishment:

The Assembly resolved to establish a Standing Committee on Planning, Transport and City Services on 2 December 2020 (amended on 11 February, 30 March, 22 April, 16 September and 9 November 2021).

Inquiries:

- Civic—Impact of revised speed limits—Petitions 31-21 and 38-21 (referred 30 September 2021).
- Giralang Shops (referred 10 February 2021, inquiry undertaken 3 March 2021, Interim Report (Report 8) published 14 December 2021).

Inquiries completed—Reports/Government responses:

- Report 1—Estimates 2020-21 and Annual Reports 2019-20 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, published 9 April 2021, tabled 20 April 2021, Government response to Budget 2020-21 tabled 20 April 2021).
- Report 2—Draft Reserve Management Plan: Canberra Nature Park (referred 17 June 2021, published 20 July 2021, tabled 3 August 2021, Government response tabled 11 November 2021).
- Report 3—Draft Land Management Plan: Canberra Urban Lakes and Ponds (Revised Report) (referred 17 June 2021, published 8 September 2021, tabled 16 September 2021, Government response tabled 2 December 2021).
- Report 4—DV365—Housing Choices—Co-Housing and Boarding Houses (referred 1 March 2021 pursuant to subsection 73(2) of the *Planning and Development Act 2007*, inquiry undertaken 11 March 2021, published 10 September 2021, tabled 16 September 2021).
- Report 5—Draft Variation to the Territory Plan No 364—Gungahlin Town Centre: Amendments
 to the Gungahlin precinct map and code (referred 11 March 2021 pursuant to subsection 73(2)
 of the *Planning and Development Act 2007*, inquiry undertaken 8 April 2021, published
 30 September 2021, tabled 6 October 2021).
- Report 6—Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly)
 Bill 2021-2022 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, published 12 November 2021, tabled 23 November 2021, Government response tabled 23 November 2021).
- Report 7—Road Transport Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 and Road Transport (Safety and Traffic Management) Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, cognate inquiry undertaken 12 August 2021, tabled 30 November 2021).

Bills referred upon presentation, pursuant to resolution of establishment:

- City Renewal Authority and Suburban Land Agency Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 6 October 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 14 October 2021).
- Domestic Animals Legislative Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 31 March 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 1 April 2021).
- Loose-Fill Asbestos Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 3 June 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 10 June 2021).
- Planning and Development Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 11 February 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 18 February 2021).
- Planning and Unit Titles Bill 2020 (presented 8 December 2020—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 8 December 2020).
- Planning and Unit Titles Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 8 October 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 14 October 2021).
- Plastic Reduction Bill 2020 (presented 8 December 2020—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 8 December 2020).
- Public Place Names Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 30 November 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 9 December 2021).
- Road Transport (Safety and Traffic Management) Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 13 May 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 20 May 2021).
- Road Transport (Safety and Traffic Management) Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) (presented 22 June 2021, inquiry undertaken 1 July 2021—inquiry undertaken in conjunction with the Road Transport Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 19 August 2021).
- Road Transport Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 5 August 2021—inquiry undertaken in conjunction with the Road Transport (Safety and Traffic Management) Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) 19 August 2021).
- Road Transport Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) (presented 1 December 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 9 December 2021).

Petitions referred by leave:

- Petition 15-21—Melba recreational space, together with two out-of-order petitions (referred 9 November 2021).
- Petitions 42-21 and 47-21—Phillip Pool, together with an out-of-order petition (referred 30 November 2021).

Petitions referred pursuant to standing order 99:

- Petition 13-21—Gordon—Traffic management plan (referred 2 June 2021).
- Petitions 17-21 and 20-21—Theodore—Traffic safety (referred 22 June 2021).

Petitions referred pursuant to standing order 99A:

- Petition 13-20—Fyshwick—Proposed waste processing facilities (referred 3 December 2020).
- Petition 24-20—Thoroughbred Park—Withdrawal of Government funding (referred 2 December 2020, redirected to Standing Committee on Justice and Community Safety on 12 January 2021).

- Petition 4-21—Giralang shops—Update on development (referred 10 February 2021).
- Petition 5-21—Yerrabi Pond (referred 20 April 2021).
- Petition 8-21—Kippax Fair—Expansion (referred 30 March 2021).
- Petition 14-21—Yerrabi Pond (referred 23 April 2021).
- Petition 16-21—Gungahlin Town Centre—Suspension of land auctions/sales (referred 3 August 2021).
- Petition 19-21—Canberra Sand and Gravel—Green waste and landscaping supplies (referred 22 June 2021).
- Petition 22-21—Nicholls enclosed oval—Upgrade to amenities (referred 3 August 2021).
- Petition 23-21—Woden Town Centre—Multi-purpose indoor sports stadium (referred 30 November 2021).
- Petition 24-21—Red Hill Integrated Plan (referred 3 August 2021).
- Petition 28-21—Draft Variation to the Territory Plan No 375—Manor house development—Griffith (referred 3 August 2021).
- Petition 48-21—Woden Town Centre—Multi-purpose indoor sports stadium (referred 1 December 2021).
- Petitions 10-21 and 11-21—Chisholm Village—Development (referred 20 April 2021).
- Petitions 21-21 and 40-21—Campbell—Review of parking and traffic (referred 6 October 2021).
- Petitions 26-21 and 43-21—Waramanga playing fields—Lighting (referred 9 November 2021).
- Petitions 31-21 and 38-21—Civic—40 km speed limit zones (referred 16 September 2021).

Statement by Chair: Gungahlin Town Centre—Development (2 June 2021).

Statements made pursuant to standing order 246A:

- Consideration of statutory appointments—Period 1 January to 30 June 2021 (2 December 2021).
- Draft Variations to the Territory Plan—
 - No 365—Inquiry (30 March 2021).
 - No 369—Impact of changes—Inquiry (23 November 2021).
- Petitions—
 - No 4-21—Giralang Shops—Update on development—Inquiry
 - o (30 March 2021).
 - o (3 August 2021).
 - No 8-21—Kippax Fair—Expansion (16 September 2021).
 - Nos 10-21 and 11-21—Chisholm Village—Development, and No 14-21—Yerrabi Pond (6 October 2021).
 - No 16-21—Gungahlin Town Centre—Land sales and No 22-21—Nicholls Oval upgrades (23 November 2021)
 - No 31-21—Implementation of revised speed limits in parts of Civic (6 October 2021).

Statement pursuant to standing order 246A presented: Planning, Transport and City Services—Standing Committee—Petitions—E-petition 5-21—Yerrabi Pond, e-petition 17-21 and petition 20-21—Lawrence Wackett Crescent and Tharwa Drive in Theodore, and e-petition 19-21—Closure of greenwaste and landscaping supplies at Parkwood Pond (presented 11 November 2021).

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Formation: 2 December 2020

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Mrs Elizabeth Kikkert (Chair from 17 March 2021),

Mr Michael Pettersson (Deputy Chair from 7 December 2020),

Mr Andrew Braddock (Member from 2 December 2020).

Past Member: Mr Alistair Coe (Chair from 7 December 2020 to 12 March 2021).

Resolution of Appointment:

The Assembly resolved to establish a standing committee on Public Accounts on 2 December 2020 (amended on 11 February, 30 March, 22 April, 16 September, and 9 November 2021).

Inquiries:

- Auditor-General Report: 6/2020—Transfer of workers' compensation arrangements from Comcare (referred 19 June 2020, adopted for further inquiry 5 May 2021).
- Auditor-General Report: 1/2021—Land Management Agreements (referred 4 February 2021, adopted for further inquiry 5 May 2021).
- Auditor-General Report: 3/2021—Court Transport Unit Vehicle—Romeo 5 (referred 30 March 2021, adopted for further inquiry 30 June 2021).
- Auditor-General Report: 5/2021—Management of Closed-Circuit Television System (referred 18 June 2021, adopted for further inquiry 30 June 2021).
- Auditor-General Report: 4/2020—Residential Land Supply and Release (referred 26 June 2020, adopted for further inquiry 28 July 2021).
- Auditor-General Report: 7/2021—Procurement Exemptions and Value for Money (referred 28 June 2021, adopted for further inquiry 23 September 2021).
- Auditor-General Report: 8/2021—Canberra Light Rail Stage 2A: Economic Analysis (referred 24 September 2021, adopted for further inquiry 14 October 2021).
- Financial Management Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment—inquiry undertaken 8 December 2021).

Inquiries completed—Reports/Government responses:

 Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2020-2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, tabled 31 March 2021, Government response to Budget 2020-21 tabled 20 April 2021, Speaker's response to Recommendations 24, 25, 26, 27, 28 and 29 tabled 23 April 2021, Government response to Annual and Financial Reports tabled 3 August 2021).

- Report 2—Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly)
 Bill 2021-2022 (referred pursuant to resolution of establishment, tabled 11 November 2021,
 Government response tabled 23 November 2021, Speaker's response to Recommendations 20
 and 21 tabled 23 November 2021; ACT Ombudsman's response to Recommendation 19 tabled
 30 November 2021).
- Report 3—Inquiry into the Auditor-General's Report No. 1 of 2020: Shared Services Delivery of HR and Finance Services (referred 21 February 2020, adopted for further inquiry 5 May 2021, published 9 December 2021).

Bills referred upon presentation, pursuant to resolution of establishment:

- Financial Management Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 16 September 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 27 September 2021).
- Financial Management Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) (presented 1 December 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 8 December 2021).
- Utilities Amendment Bill 2021 (presented 20 April 2021—resolved not to undertake an inquiry 5 May 2021).

Statements made pursuant to standing order 246A:

- Auditor-General's Reports—
 - No 7/2019 (11 May 2021).
 - No 4/2021 (6 October 2021).
 - No 6/2021 (6 October 2021).
 - No 8/2021 (1 December 2021).
 - Nos 5/2019, 6/2019, 9/2019, 10/2019, 2/2020, 3/2020, 7/2020, 9/2020, 10/2020, 11/2020, 2/2021 (11 May 2021).
 - Nos 1/2020, 6/2020 and 1/2021 (11 May 2021).
 - Nos 3/2021, 5/2021 and 7/2021 (6 October 2021).
- Consideration of statutory appointments—
 - Period 1 July to 31 December 2020 (Ninth and Tenth Assemblies) (31 March 2021).
 - Period 1 January to 30 June 2021 (24 November 2021).
- Reportable contracts (11 May 2021).

SELECT COMMITTEES

COVID-19 2021 PANDEMIC RESPONSE (DISSOLVED)

Formation: 16 September 2021

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Ms Elizabeth Lee (Chair from 23 September 2021),

Ms Suzanne Orr (Deputy Chair from 23 September 2021),

Ms Jo Clay

Resolution of appointment:

That:

- (1) in response to the August 2021 outbreak of COVID-19 in the ACT, a select committee be appointed to consider and report to the Assembly on any matter relating to the ACT Government's health and financial response and any other matter relating to the COVID-19 pandemic as it relates to the ACT;
- (2) the committee be composed of:
 - (a) one Member to be nominated by the Government;
 - (b) one Member to be nominated by the Opposition; and
 - (c) one Member to be nominated by The Greens;

to be notified in writing by each whip to the Speaker by close of business on 16 September 2021;

- (3) an Opposition Member shall be elected chair of the committee by the committee;
- (4) in conducting public hearings, the committee shall be mindful of the Public Health Emergency declaration, including that:
 - (a) all efforts are made to minimise the time witnesses are required to be present by scheduling designated hearing times, advising in advance which witnesses the committee wishes to call or topics that will be discussed, and other measures that minimise impact on essential government, non-government, business or other witness's organisational resources;
 - (b) where a public hearing is scheduled requiring government ministers and/or officials, hearings are not held at the same time as National Cabinet, a meeting of the ACT Government Cabinet, or when another committee of the Assembly is holding hearings, or on a sitting day of the Assembly, and:
 - these are to be held no more than once per fortnight for a maximum of two hours, with no directorate/agency or minister to appear for more than an hour; and
 - (ii) the committee must advise of the ministers, directorates and officers required and the committee's intended lines of inquiry no less than one week prior;
 - (c) hearings are held virtually or via secure teleconference until such time as health declarations permit face-to-face hearings;

- (d) the above provisions only apply during the Public Health Emergency declaration; and
- (e) the committee members endeavour to seek broad input from a range of community members and organisations into the COVID response;
- (5) for the purposes of this committee's operation, standing order 254D does not apply; and
- (6) the committee deliver its final report no later than the last sitting day of 2021.".

Inquiry completed—Report: Inquiry into the COVID-19 2021 pandemic response (referred 16 September 2021, tabled 2 December 2021).

DRUGS OF DEPENDENCE (PERSONAL USE) AMENDMENT BILL 2021 (DISSOLVED)

Formation: 11 February 2021

Pursuant to: Resolution of the Assembly

Committee Members: Mr Peter Cain (Chair from 15 February 2021),

Dr Marisa Paterson (Deputy Chair from 15 February 2021),

Mr Johnathan Davis (Member from 11 February 2021).

Resolution of appointment:

That:

(1) a Select Committee on the Drugs of Dependence (Personal Use) Amendment Bill 2021 be appointed to examine the Bill and any other related matters;

- (2) the Committee be composed of:
 - (a) one Member to be nominated by the Government;
 - (b) one Member to be nominated by the Opposition; and
 - (c) one Member to be nominated by The Greens;

to be notified in writing to the Speaker by 3 pm today;

- (3) the Chair of the committee shall be an Opposition Member;
- (4) the Committee is to report by 30 November 2021⁷; and
- (5) the foregoing provisions of this resolution, so far as they are inconsistent with the standing orders, have effect notwithstanding anything contained in the standing orders or in the resolution of 2 December 2020.

Inquiry completed—Report: Report—Inquiry into the Drugs of Dependence (Personal Use) Amendment Bill 2021 (referred 11 February 2021, tabled 30 November 2021).

Statement made pursuant to standing order 246A: Drug harm reduction (30 March 2021).

⁷ Amended 16 September 2021

NINTH ASSEMBLY COMMITTEES

REPORTS/GOVERNMENT RESPONSES TABLED IN TENTH ASSEMBLY

ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURE—STANDING COMMITTEE

• Report 17—Inquiry into possible structures of the committee system for the 10th Legislative Assembly for the Australian Capital Territory—Recommendation 9—Use of Zoom for Committee Public Hearings (Government response tabled 30 March 2021).

COVID-19 PANDEMIC RESPONSE—SELECT COMMITTEE

Interim Report 4 and Final Report (Government response tabled 9 February 2021).

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM—STANDING COMMITTEE

Report 9—Inquiry into Building Quality (Government response tabled 2 December 2020).

EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT AND YOUTH AFFAIRS—STANDING COMMITTEE

• Report 9—Youth Mental Health in the ACT (Government response tabled 9 February 2021).

HEALTH, AGEING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES—STANDING COMMITTEE

 Report 11—Report on Child and Youth Protection Services (Part 2) and Report 12—Final Report on Child and Youth Protection Services (Part 1) (Government response tabled 3 December 2020).

JUSTICE AND COMMUNITY SAFETY—STANDING COMMITTEE

- Report 9—Report on Inquiry into the Form of an Evaluation of Current ACT Policing Arrangements (published 29 September 2020, tabled 3 November 2020, Government response tabled 30 March 2021).
- Report 10—Report on Review of ACT emergency services responses to the 2019-20 bushfire season (published 29 September 2020, tabled 3 November 2020, Government response tabled 11 February 2021).

JUSTICE AND COMMUNITY SAFETY—STANDING COMMITTEE (LEGISLATIVE SCRUTINY ROLE)

- Report 47 (Government response to comments on Disallowable Instrument DI2020-147—Animal Welfare (Advisory Committee) Establishment 2020 (No 1)—tabled 2 December 2020).
- Report 51 (published 8 September 2020, tabled 3 November 2020, Government response to comments on the Rail Safety National Law National Regulations (Fees and Other Measures) tabled 2 December 2020).

PLANNING AND URBAN RENEWAL—STANDING COMMITTEE

 Report 13—Draft Variation No 363—Curtin group centre and adjacent residential areas: zone changes and amendments to the Curtin precinct map and code (Government response tabled 2 December 2020). Report 14—Inquiry into Planning for the Surgical Procedures, Interventional Radiology and Emergency Centre (SPIRE) and the Canberra Hospital campus and immediate surrounds (Government response tabled 9 February 2021).

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS—STANDING COMMITTEE

 Report 13—Inquiry into Auditor-General Report No 8 of 2018: Assembly of rural land west of Canberra (Government response tabled 30 March 2021).

COMMITTEE REPORTS—RESPONSES

GOVERNMENT RESPONSES

NINTH ASSEMBLY

Title

Policing Arrangements

2019-20 bushfire season

ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURE—STANDING COMMITTEE

Title	Date
Report 17—Inquiry into possible structures of the committee system for the 10 th Legislative Assembly for the Australian Capital Territory—	
Recommendation 9—Use of Zoom for Committee Public Hearings	30.03.2
OVID-19 PANDEMIC RESPONSE—SELECT COMMITTEE	
Title	Date
Interim Report 4 and Final Report	9.02.21
CONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM—STANDING COMMITTEE	
Title	Date
nue	
Report 9—Inquiry into Building Quality	
Report 9—Inquiry into Building Quality	
Report 9—Inquiry into Building Quality DUCATION, EMPLOYMENT AND YOUTH AFFAIRS—STANDING COMMITTEE	02.12.2 Date
Report 9—Inquiry into Building Quality DUCATION, EMPLOYMENT AND YOUTH AFFAIRS—STANDING COMMITTEE Title	02.12.2
Report 9—Inquiry into Building Quality DUCATION, EMPLOYMENT AND YOUTH AFFAIRS—STANDING COMMITTEE Title Report 9—Youth Mental Health in the ACT	02.12.2 Date

Report 9—Report on Inquiry into the Form of an Evaluation of Current ACT

Report 10—Report on Review of ACT emergency services responses to the

Date

30.03.21

11.02.21

JUSTICE AND COMMUNITY SAFETY—STANDING COMMITTEE (LEGISLATIVE SCRUTINY ROLE)—

Title	Date
Report 47—Comments on Disallowable Instrument DI2020-147—Animal Welfare (Advisory Committee) Establishment 2020 (No 1)	02.12.20
Report 51—Comments on the Rail Safety National Law National Regulations (Fees and Other Measures)	02.12.20

PLANNING AND URBAN RENEWAL—STANDING COMMITTEE

Title	Date
Report 13—Draft Variation No 363—Curtin group centre and adjacent residential areas: zone changes and amendments to the Curtin precinct map and code	02.12.20
Report 14—Inquiry into Planning for the Surgical Procedures, Interventional Radiology and Emergency Centre (SPIRE) and the Canberra Hospital campus and immediate surrounds	09.02.21

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS—STANDING COMMITTEE

Title	Date
Report 13—Inquiry into Auditor-General Report No 8 of 2018: Assembly of rural	
land west of Canberra	11.02.21

TENTH ASSEMBLY

ECONOMY AND GENDER AND ECONOMIC EQUALITY—STANDING COMMITTEE

Title	Date
Report 1—Inquiry into COVID-19 Emergency Response Legislation Amendment Bill 2020 (No 3)	10.02.21
Report 2—Report on inquiries into Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20 and ACT Budget 2020-21 (Response to Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20)	03.08.21

EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY INCLUSION—STANDING COMMITTEE

Title	Date
Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020 and Appropriation Bill 2020-2021 (Response to Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20)	03.08.21

ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE CHANGE AND BIODIVERSITY—STANDING COMMITTEE

Title	Date
Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020 and Estimates 2020-21 (Response to Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20)	03.08.2
ALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES—STANDING COMMITTEE	
Title	Date
Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2020-2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (Parameter & Appropriation Financial Reports 2010-20)	02.00
2020-2021 (Response to Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20) Report 2—Report on Inquiry into the Carers Recognition Bill 2021	03.08.
Report 2—Report on inquiry into the Carers Recognition Bill 2021	02.12
TICE AND COMMUNITY SAFETY —STANDING COMMITTEE	
Title	Date
Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2020-2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (Response to Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20)	03.08.
NNING, TRANSPORT AND CITY SERVICES—STANDING COMMITTEE	
	Date
NNING, TRANSPORT AND CITY SERVICES—STANDING COMMITTEE	Date
NNING, TRANSPORT AND CITY SERVICES—STANDING COMMITTEE	Date 11.11.
Title Report 2—Draft Reserve Management Plan: Canberra Nature Park Report 3—Draft Land Management Plan: Canberra Urban Lakes and Ponds	Date 11.11.
Title Report 2—Draft Reserve Management Plan: Canberra Nature Park Report 3—Draft Land Management Plan: Canberra Urban Lakes and Ponds (Revised Report)	Date 11.11.
Title Report 2—Draft Reserve Management Plan: Canberra Nature Park Report 3—Draft Land Management Plan: Canberra Urban Lakes and Ponds (Revised Report) BLIC ACCOUNTS—STANDING COMMITTEE Title Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (Response	Date 11.11.: 02.12.:
Title Report 2—Draft Reserve Management Plan: Canberra Nature Park Report 3—Draft Land Management Plan: Canberra Urban Lakes and Ponds (Revised Report) BLIC ACCOUNTS—STANDING COMMITTEE Title Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (Response to Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20)	Date 11.11 02.12 Date
Title Report 2—Draft Reserve Management Plan: Canberra Nature Park Report 3—Draft Land Management Plan: Canberra Urban Lakes and Ponds (Revised Report) BLIC ACCOUNTS—STANDING COMMITTEE Title Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (Response	Date 11.11.3
Title Report 2—Draft Reserve Management Plan: Canberra Nature Park Report 3—Draft Land Management Plan: Canberra Urban Lakes and Ponds (Revised Report) BLIC ACCOUNTS—STANDING COMMITTEE Title Report 1—Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020; Appropriation Bill 2021 and Appropriation (Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021 (Response to Annual and Financial Reports 2019-20)	Date 11.11. 02.12. Date 03.08.

Reports—Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation (Office of the

Legislative Assembly) Bill 2021-2022

23.11.21

OTHER RESPONSES

Committee and Title	Received from	Date
Administration and Procedure—Standing Committee— Report 2—Report on the conduct of Mr Coe, MLA—		
Apology, in accordance with Recommendation 1	Mr Coe	30.03.21
Administration and Procedure—Standing Committee—		
Report 6—Report on the conduct of Mr Parton, MLA—		
Apology, in accordance with Recommendation 1	Mr Parton	05.08.21
Public Accounts—Standing Committee—Report 1—		
Annual and Financial Reports 2019-2020;		
Appropriation Bill 2021 and Appropriation (Office of		
the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2020-2021—		
Recommendations, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28 and 29	Speaker	23.04.21
Public Accounts—Standing Committee—Report 2—		
Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation		
(Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2021-2022—		
Recommendations 20 and 21	Speaker	23.11.21
Public Accounts—Standing Committee—Report 2—		
Appropriation Bill 2021-2022 and Appropriation		
(Office of the Legislative Assembly) Bill 2021-2022—		
Recommendation 19	ACT Ombudsman	30.11.21

MOTIONS

ASSEMBLY BUSINESS

ACT Integrity Commissioner—Approval of appointment (Ms Burch, 22 April 2021); motion agreed to.

Assembly proceedings during COVID-19 lockdown—

(Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution (Mr Gentleman, 7 October 2021); motion agreed to.

Code of Conduct—Reaffirmation (passed by a $^2/_3$ majority of Members) (Mr Parton, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Days and times of next meetings (Mr Barr, 3 November 2020); motion agreed to.

Light Rail Stage 2 Project—Select Committee—Proposed establishment—Light Rail Stage 2 Project—Consideration by Standing Committee on Public Accounts (*Mr Parton, 7 October 2021*); debate ensued; amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Order of Business-

(Mr Gentleman, 9 February 2021); motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution (Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

Protected information—Alleged misuse—

(Ms Burch, 13 May 2021); adjourned. Debate resumed; motion agreed to.

Referral to Commissioner for Standards (Ms Burch, 13 May 2021); motion agreed to.

Sitting pattern—

2021-

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

2022-

(Mr Gentleman, 11 November 2021); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Proposed amendments to resolution (*Mr Hanson, 25 November 2021*); debate ensued; motion negatived.

Standing order 113A—Proposed amendment (*Mr Hanson, 16 September 2021*); debate ensued; debate adjourned.

ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURE—STANDING COMMITTEE

Establishment (Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

References:

- Evaluation of trial of estimates being considered by standing committees (Ms Orr, 3 June 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Interaction between the Assembly and its committees (Ms Orr, 2 June 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Proposed amendment to standing order 113A (Mr Braddock, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

COVID-19 2021 PANDEMIC RESPONSE—SELECT COMMITTEE

Establishment (Ms Lee, 16 September 2021); debate ensued; amendment moved; amendments to amendment moved and agreed to; amendment, as amended, agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Membership (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

DRUGS OF DEPENDENCE (PERSONAL USE) AMENDMENT BILL 2021—SELECT COMMITTEE

Establishment (Mr Hanson, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

Amendment to reporting date (Mr Cain, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Membership (Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

ECONOMY AND GENDER AND ECONOMIC EQUALITY—STANDING COMMITTEE

Establishment—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution-

(Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

(Ms Lawder, 22 April 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

(Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Annual reports 2020-2021 (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Estimates reporting date (*Mr Gentleman, 9 November 2021*); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Membership—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

(Mr Hanson, 24 June 2021); motion agreed to.

Reference: Monumental women—Petition, pursuant to standing order 99 (*Mr Davis, 2 June 2021*); motion agreed to.

EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY INCLUSION—STANDING COMMITTEE

Establishment—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution—

(Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

(Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Annual reports 2020-2021 (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Estimates reporting date (Mr Gentleman, 9 November 2021); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Membership (Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

Reference: Racial vilification (Mrs Jones, 11 November 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE CHANGE AND BIODIVERSITY—STANDING COMMITTEE

Establishment—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution—

(Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

(Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Annual reports 2020-2021 (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Estimates reporting date (Mr Gentleman, 9 November 2021); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Membership (Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

ESTIMATES 2021-2022—SELECT COMMITTEE

Proposed establishment (Mr Hanson, 3 June 2021); debate ensued; debate adjourned.

Discharged (Mr Hanson, 25 November 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

HEALTH AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING—STANDING COMMITTEE

Establishment—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution—

(Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

(Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Annual reports 2020-2021 (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Estimates reporting date (Mr Gentleman, 9 November 2021); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Membership—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

(Mr Hanson, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Reference: Public Health Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2) (Ms Stephen-Smith, 2 December 2021); motion agreed to.

JUSTICE AND COMMUNITY SAFETY—STANDING COMMITTEE

Establishment—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution—

(Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

(Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Annual reports 2020-2021 (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Estimates reporting date (*Mr Gentleman, 9 November 2021*); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Membership (Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

Reference: 2020 ACT Election and the Electoral Act (*Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020*); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

PLANNING, TRANSPORT AND CITY SERVICES—STANDING COMMITTEE

Establishment—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution-

(Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

(Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Annual reports 2020-2021 (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Estimates reporting date (Mr Gentleman, 9 November 2021); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Membership (Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

References/Inquiry-

Gordon—Traffic management plan—Petition, pursuant to standing order 99 (*Mr Davis, 2 June 2021*); motion agreed to.

Melba recreational space—Petition and out-of-order petitions (Ms Clay, 9 November 2021); motion agreed to.

Phillip pool—Petitions and out-of-order petition (Mrs Jones, 30 November 2021); motion agreed to.

Road Transport (Safety and Traffic Management) Amendment Bill 2021 (No 2)—

Inquiry—Reporting date (Ms Clay, 5 August 2021); motion agreed to.

Amendment to reporting date—Road Transport Legislation Amendment Bill 2021 (Ms Clay, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Theodore—Traffic safety—Petitions, pursuant to standing order 99 (Mr Parton, 22 June 2021); motion agreed to.

Public Accounts—Standing Committee

Establishment-

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution-

(Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

(Ms Lawder, 22 April 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

(Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Annual reports 2020-2021 (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Estimates reporting date (Mr Gentleman, 9 November 2021); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Membership-

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

(Mr Gentleman, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

STANDING COMMITTEES

Establishment—

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Amendment to resolution-

(Mr Gentleman, 11 February 2021); motion agreed to.

(Ms Lawder, 22 April 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

(Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

Annual reports 2020-2021 (Mr Gentleman, 16 September 2021); motion agreed to.

Estimates reporting date (*Mr Gentleman, 9 November 2021*); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Membership-

(Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.

(Mr Gentleman, 30 March 2021); motion agreed to.

CENSURE/NO CONFIDENCE

Minister for Corrections—Proposed motion of no confidence—

(Mrs Kikkert, 3 August 2021); debate ensued; motion negatived.

(Mrs Kikkert, 6 October 2021); debate ensued; motion negatived.

DISALLOWANCE/REJECTION

Government Procurement Act—Government Procurement (Secure Local Jobs) Code 2020— Disallowance Instrument DI2020-278—Motion to disallow (*Mr Cain, 10 February 2021*); debate ensued; motion negatived.

ORDER TO TABLE

Full Mesoscopic study—Paper (*Mr Hanson, 5 August 2021*); debate adjourned. Debate resumed; amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

PRINCIPAL

ACT Government Campaign Advertising—Acting Independent Reviewer—Appointment (Mr Barr, 10 November 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to, with the concurrence of a $^2/_3$ majority of Members.

Budget 2021-22 (Mr Barr, 16 September 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

Condolence—Westende, Mr Lou (Mr Barr, 2 December); motion agreed to.

Domestic and family violence—Paid leave (Ms Berry and Mr Rattenbury, 2 December 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

```
Leave of absence—
   All Members-
       (Mr Gentleman, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.
       (Mr Gentleman, 3 December 2021); motion agreed to.
   Ms Berry, Ms Lee and Dr Paterson—
       (Mr Gentleman, 23 November 2021); motion agreed to.
       (Mr Gentleman, 24 November 2021); motion agreed to.
   Ms Berry—
       (Mr Gentleman, 2 June 2021); motion agreed to.
       (Mr Gentleman, 10 November 2021); motion agreed to.
   Mr Braddock-
       (Ms Clay, 23 November 2021); motion agreed to.
       (Ms Clay, 2 December 2021); motion agreed to.
   Mr Coe (Mr Hanson, 3 December 2020); motion agreed to.
   Mr Hanson (Ms Castley, 23 April 2021); motion agreed to.
   Mrs Jones-
       (Mr Hanson, 1 December 2021); motion agreed to.
       (Mr Hanson, 2 December 2021); motion agreed to.
   Ms Lawder-
       (Mr Hanson, 2 December 2020); motion agreed to.
       (Mr Hanson, 3 August 2021); motion agreed to.
       (Mr Hanson, 25 November 2021); motion agreed to.
   Ms Lee-
       (Mr Hanson, 9 November 2021); motion agreed to.
       (Mr Hanson, 25 November 2021); motion agreed to.
   Mr Milligan-
       (Mr Hanson, 6 October 2021); motion agreed to.
       (Mr Hanson, 7 October 2021); motion agreed to.
   Mr Steel (Mr Gentleman, 22 April 2021); motion agreed to.
```

Pregnancy and Infant Loss Remembrance Day (Ms Cheyne, Mr Rattenbury and Ms Lee, 8 October 2021), debate ensued; motion agreed to.

Royal Commission into Veterans Suicide (*Mr Davidson, 31 March 2021*); debate ensued; amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Territory rights—

(Ms Cheyne and Mr Rattenbury, 8 October 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

Voluntary assisted dying in the ACT (Ms Cheyne, Mr Rattenbury and Ms Lee, 31 March 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

PRIVATE MEMBERS' BUSINESS

Alexander Maconochie Centre—

- Correctional officers—Mental health support (Mrs Kikkert, 5 August 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Racism (Mrs Kikkert, 9 February 2021); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Animal-friendly netting (Ms Clay, 23 November 2021); amendments moved; question divided—amendments 1 to 3 agreed to, amendment 4 agreed to, amendments 5 to 7 agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Assisted reproduction technology—Regulation and access (*Dr Paterson, 20 April 2021*); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Australian Defence Force budget cuts (*Mr Hanson, 23 November 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Autism spectrum disorder—Access to screening (Mrs Kikkert, 24 November 2021); amendment moved, amendment to amendment moved and negatived; amendment agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Canberra Community Law—Funding (*Ms Lee, 2 June 2021*); amendment moved; amendment to amendment moved and negatived; amendment agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Canberra Indian-Australian community—Support (Ms Orr, 13 May 2021); debate ensued; amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.
- Canberra Rape Crisis Service (*Mrs Jones, 31 March 2021*); amendments moved and agreed to; amendment to motion, as amended, moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Care and protection orders (Mrs Kikkert, 11 May 2021); amendments moved; amendment to amendments moved and negatived; amendments agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- ChooseCBR review (Ms Castley, 22 June 2021); debate ensued; amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Climate targets and commitments (Ms Clay, 11 November 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Community clubs—Government support (*Mr Parton, 3 December 2020*); amendments moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Cost of living pressures (Ms Lee, 6 October 2021); amendment moved; question divided—paragraphs (1) to (5) agreed to, paragraph (6) agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

COVID-19 pandemic—

Lockdown-

Community sector support (*Mr Davis, 16 September 2021*); debate ensued; amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Support for business (Ms Lee, 16 September 2021); debate ensued; amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Social and economic recovery (*Mr Braddock, 7 October 2021*); debate ensued; question divided—paragraph (2) agreed to; paragraphs (1) and (3) agreed to.

Dementia-friendly infrastructure (*Ms Lawder, 21 April 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Dryland ovals—Land management plans (Ms Clay, 30 November 2021); amendment moved; amendment to amendment moved and agreed to; amendment, as amended, agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Education-

System-

Review (Mr Hanson, 23 June 2021); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Teachers' pay and conditions (*Mr Hanson, 1 December 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Trans and gender diverse students (*Mr Pettersson, 12 May 2021*); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

Endoscopy services—Wait times (Mrs Jones, 22 April 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

E-invoicing (*Mr Cain, 3 August 2021*); debate ensued; amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

E-scooter share scheme expansion (*Mr Pettersson, 22 June 2021*); debate ensued; amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

E-waste recycling (Ms Clay, 23 June 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

Family and domestic violence—Legislative reforms (Ms Lee, 30 March 2021); debate ensued; amendments moved; question divided—amendments agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Financial literacy education and school banking programs (*Mr Davis, 10 February 2021*); debate ensued; amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.

Fossil fuel non-proliferation treaty (Ms Clay, 2 June 2021), debate ensued; motion agreed to.

Gender inequality (Ms Orr, 6 October 2021); debate ensued; amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Gunghalin-

Cinema development (Mr Pettersson, 1 December 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

Town Centre—Development—

- (Mr Braddock, 11 May 2021); debate ensued; debate adjourned. (2 June 2021); debate resumed; amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- (Ms Orr, 10 February 2021); debate ensued; amendments moved and agreed to; amendment to motion, as amended, moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Healthcare services (*Mrs Jones, 7 October 2021*); amendments moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- 'Her Way' Recommendation Report (*Dr Paterson, 25 November 2021*); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.
- Hospitality support package (Ms Castley, 4 August 2021); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Housing and rental affordability (*Mr Parton, 9 November 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Housing stress reduction (*Mr Parton, 10 February 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Junior doctors—Burnout and exhaustion (Mrs Jones; 2 December 2020); debate ensued; amendments moved; question divided—amendment withdrawn; amendment agreed to; amendment to amendment moved and agreed to; amendment, as amended, agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Lake Tuggeranong—Upgrades (Ms Lawder, 24 June 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Language challenges facing Canberra's multicultural community (*Mr Braddock, 4 August 2021*); amendments moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Light rail vehicle fleet (*Mr Parton, 10 November 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Mental health, alcohol and other drug use disorders—Treatment services (*Ms Lee, 2 December 2021*); amendments moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Molonglo Valley—

- Commercial centre—Land release (*Mrs Jones, 8 October 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Community Council (Dr Paterson, 11 February 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Mowing services (*Mr Hanson, 25 November 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- National Disability Insurance Scheme (Ms Orr, 5 August 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- National Park City Foundation (Dr Paterson, 3 June 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Out-of-home care education (Mrs Kikkert, 3 June 2021); amendment moved and agreed to, motion, as amended, agreed to.

- Police numbers (*Mr Hanson, 20 April 2021*); amendment moved, agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Portable long service leave schemes (*Mr Pettersson, 9 November 2021*); amendment moved and negatived; motion agreed to.
- Poverty Task Force—Proposed establishment (Ms Lee, 11 February 2021); debate ensued; motion negatived.
- Pregnancy and infant loss—Paid leave scheme for public sector employees (Mrs Jones, 24 November 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Public housing—Maintenance (*Mr Parton, 21 April 2021*); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Small business—Proposed ministerial advisory council (*Ms Castley, 23 April 2021*); debate ensued; amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Sport and active recreation (Mr Davis, 22 April 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Student participation in democracy (Mr Davis, 24 June 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Sun smart messaging (Dr Paterson, 10 November 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Town centres—Initiatives to support night-time economy (Ms Castley, 11 November 2021); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Urban tree canopy coverage (Mr Braddock, 31 March 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Vaping products—Education and regulation (*Dr Paterson, 3 August 2021*); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Withdrawal of assertions made against Senators (*Mr Hanson, 10 November 2021*); debate ensued; motion negatived.
- Workers compensation data—Privacy breach (Ms Lee, 30 November 2021); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Work health and safety—Psychosocial hazards (Ms Orr, 30 March 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.
- Workplace culture in the ACT health services (*Mrs Jones, 13 May 2021*); amendments moved; amendment to amendments moved and agreed to; amendments, as amended, agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.

Yerrabi Pond-

- Parking (Ms Castley, 12 May 2021); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Recreation area (Mr Pettersson, 23 April 2021); amendment moved and agreed to; motion, as amended, agreed to.
- Youth mental health (Mr Pettersson, 8 October 2021); debate ensued; motion agreed to.

SPEAKER—STATEMENTS/RULINGS

Subject	Date
ACT Integrity Commission—Ministerial responsibility	09.11.21
ACT Legislative Assembly—Anniversary	11.05.21
Andrew Snedden—Retirement	11.11.21
Australian Capital Territory Legislative Assembly Members Superannuation Board—Board Membership	08.10.21
Executive Manager, Business Support Branch—Retirement	24.06.21
HRH Prince Philip, Duke of Edinburgh—Condolence	20.04.21
Interaction between Mrs Jones and Mr Barr	23.06.21
Notice No 2, Private member's business—Committee inquiry on same subject	11.05.21

MINISTERIAL STATEMENTS

Subject	Minister	Date
100 Years of Rotary	Mr Gentleman	30.03.21
ACT economic recovery—Driving the successful recovery, one year on	Mr Barr	12.05.21
ACT Emergency Services Agency—Cross-border arrangements in response to natural hazards	Mr Gentleman	04.08.21
ACT Government's work to create sustainable Canberra jobs	Mr Barr	22.06.21
ACT high-risk weather season preparedness and seasonal outlook	Mr Gentleman	09.11.21
ACT Housing Strategy—Year 2 Report Card	Ms Berry	10.02.21
ACT Housing Strategy—Year 3 Report Card	Ms Berry	09.11.21
ACT Infrastructure Plan—Update	Mr Barr	02.06.21
ACT's sexual assault prevention and response program	Ms Berry	11.05.21
ACT transport recovery plan	Mr Steel	12.05.21
Age-friendly city plan—Statement of progress	Ms Davidson	13.05.21
Alcohol and other drug use—Harm minimisation	Ms Stephen-Smith	09.11.21
Australia's Arts Capital: Statement of Ambition for the Arts	Ms Cheyne	11.11.21
Automated vehicles	Mr Steel	07.10.21

Subject	Minister	Date
Better Regulation Taskforce	Ms Cheyne	12.05.21
Bushfire recovery and lessons learnt a year on	Mr Gentleman	31.03.21
Canberra Rape Crisis Service	Ms Stephen-Smith	03.08.21
Capital of Equality LGBTIQ+ Strategy—Statement on progress	Mr Barr	01.12.21
ChooseCBR	Ms Cheyne	22.06.21
CIT Woden and Woden Interchange—Update	Mr Steel	04.08.21
Consultation during lockdown related to planning and development	Mr Gentleman	07.10.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	02.12.20
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	09.02.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	30.03.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	20.04.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	11.05.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	02.06.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	22.06.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	03.08.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	16.09.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	06.10.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	09.11.21
Coronavirus (COVID-19)—ACT Government response— Update	Ms Stephen-Smith	02.12.21
Coroner's finding into the death of Bradyn Stuart Dillon—Government response	Ms Stephen-Smith	11.11.21
Coronial inquest—Bradyn Dillon	Ms Stephen-Smith	11.05.21
Corrections update	Mr Gentleman	09.11.21
COVID-19 outbreak in the ACT and necessary lockdown, business support and the pathway forward—Update	Mr Barr	16.09.21

Subject	Minister	Date
COVID-19 pandemic lockdown—Community sector	Ma Charles Carille	10.11.21
support	Ms Stephen-Smith	10.11.21
COVID-19 safe return to education settings	Ms Berry	09.11.21
COVID-safe working arrangements for the ACT Public Sector	Mr Gentleman	08.10.21
Disability policy	Ms Davidson	13.05.21
District level planning	Mr Gentleman	03.06.21
Education system review	Ms Berry	04.08.21
End of 2020-21 bushfire and storm season	Mr Gentleman	31.03.21
Former transport depot lead remediation	Ms Cheyne	02.06.21
Government commitments to reduce harm from gaming while supporting sustainable clubs—		
Progress	Mr Rattenbury	08.10.21
Growing a food bowl for Canberra	Ms Vassarotti	03.06.21
Growing and renewing public housing—Update	Ms Berry	03.08.21
Gungahlin—Planning for the town centre	Mr Gentleman	11.05.21
Gungahlin Town Centre	Mr Gentleman	10.11.21
Healthy waterways for better urban lakes and ponds	Mr Rattenbury	05.08.21
International Day of Older Persons	Ms Davidson	08.10.21
International Day of People with Disability	Ms Davidson	02.12.21
Mental health services—Update	Ms Davidson	03.06.21
Minimum age of criminal responsibility	Mr Rattenbury	24.06.21
Molonglo Valley Community Council	Mr Barr	03.08.21
Namadgi National Park—Recovery and management	Mr Gentleman	24.06.21
Nature: the foundation of Canberra as a liveable city and the wellbeing of the ACT community	Ms Vassarotti	13.05.21
New programs to address homelessness in the ACT— Update	Ms Vassarotti	03.08.21
New school builds to cater for growth in our community	Ms Berry	03.06.21
Nurses and midwives	Ms Stephen-Smith	12.05.21
Private Buildings Cladding Scheme	Ms Vassarotti	05.08.21
Professor of Mental Health Nursing	Ms Davidson	10.11.21
Recognising a significant contribution to the Canberra region and Australian arts sector	Ms Cheyne	04.08.21
Royal Commission into Institutional Responses to Child Sexual Abuse—ACT Government Progress Report responding to recommendations	Mr Barr	30.03.21

Subject	Minister	Date
Safer Families Annual Statement 2021	Ms Berry	23.06.21
The Canberra Hospital—Expansion project	Ms Stephen-Smith	11.02.21
Threatened species: A Road to Recovery	Ms Vassarotti	07.10.21
Trade mission—New Zealand	Mr Barr	24.06.21
Transport investment in the Molonglo Valley	Mr Steel	03.06.21
Urban Forest strategy—Implementation update	Mr Steel	10.11.21
Women and girls in the ACT—Annual statement on the status	Ms Berry	30.03.21
Workplace Culture within ACT Public Health Services— Biannual update on the implementation of the recommendations of the Final Report of the Independent Review, Update on Workplace culture in the ACT health system, and Update on Health workers	Ms Stephen-Smith	11.11.21
Workplace culture within ACT Public Health Services— Biannual update on the independent review	Ms Stephen-Smith	31.03.21
WorkSafe ACT activities and initiatives for young workers	Mr Gentleman	10.11.21
World Mental Health Day	Ms Davidson	07.10.21
Zero emission vehicles in the ACT—Update	Mr Rattenbury	11.11.21

STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS

Subject	Member	Date
ACT Greens	Mr Rattenbury	03.11.20
Commissioner for Standards—Reference	Ms Lawder	24.06.21
Commissioner for Standards—Reference	Ms Orr	24.06.21
Correction of record	Mr Parton	21.04.21
Fisher—Construction of a footpath on Ballarat Street— Petition	Dr Paterson	02.06.21
Gordon—Traffic management plan—Petition	Ms Lawder	02.06.21
Gungahlin—Union Land Playground—Shade sail— Petition out-of-order—Paper Leader of the Opposition—Election—Consent	Ms Orr Ms Lee	11.05.21 03.11.20
Protected information—Alleged misuse	Mr Braddock	13.05.21
Protected information—Alleged misuse	Mr Hanson	13.05.21

STATEMENTS BY MINISTERS

Subject	Minister	Date
Chief Minister—Election	Mr Barr	03.11.20
Correction of record	Ms Cheyne	20.04.21
	Ms Davidson	20.04.21
	Ms Stephen-Smith	20.04.21
Royal Commission into Veterans	Ms Davidson	13.05.21

PETITIONS AND MINISTERIAL RESPONSES—PRESENTATION

PETITIONS

Subject	Member	Date	No of signatures	Ministerial Response
Alcohol, tobacco and other drug treatment services	Mrs Kikkert	09.02.21	212 ^{1,2}	02.06.21
Alcohol, tobacco and other drug treatment services	Mrs Kikkert	09.02.21	487²	02.06.21
Belconnen High School— French language tuition	Mrs Kikkert	30.03.21	61 ¹	23.06.21
Bonner Oval facilities	Ms Orr	22.06.21	153 ¹	16.09.21
Campbell—Review of parking and traffic	Ms Lee	06.10.21	444 ²	
Campbell—Review of parking and traffic	Ms Lee	06.10.21	186 ^{1,2}	
Canberra Sand and Gravel— Green waste and landscaping supplies	Mr Cain	22.06.21	2128 ^{1,2}	06.10.21
Chisholm Village—Proposed development	Ms Burch	20.04.21	1043 ^{1,2}	03.08.21
Chisholm Village—Proposed development	Ms Burch	20.04.21	321 ²	03.08.21
Civic—40km speed limit zones	Mr Parton	16.09.21	1286 ^{1,2}	
Civic—40km speed limit zones	Mr Parton	16.09.21	17 ²	
Coombs-Increased police presence	Mrs Jones	11.11.21	179	
Domestic Animal Services	Ms Lawder	16.09.21	114 ¹	

Subject	Member	Date	No of signatures	Ministerial Response
Draft Variation to the Territory Plan No 375— Manor house development—Griffith	Ms Lee	03.08.21	516²	23.11.21
Drake-Brockman Drive and Southern Cross Drive— Improvements to cycling lanes	Mrs Kikkert	16.09.21	21 ¹	
East Belconnen—Investment in cricket infrastructure	Ms Clay	02.12.21	378 ¹	
Eating Disorder Position Statement	Dr Paterson	30.11.21	741 ^{1,2}	
Fadden Hills Pond playground— Improvements	Ms Lawder	09.11.21	52 ¹	
Federal income support	Mr Braddock	16.09.21	588 ^{1,2}	
Fisher—Construction of a footpath on Ballarat Street	Dr Paterson	02.06.21	155	16.09.21
Fully-fenced playgrounds for children with autism– Kambah and Throsby	Mrs Jones	02.12.21	451 ¹	
Fyshwick—Proposed waste processing facility	Ms Lee	03.12.20	1737 ^{1,2}	30.03.21
Giralang Shops—Update on development	Ms Orr	09.02.21	321 ¹	12.05.21
Giralang Shops—Update on development	Ms Orr	10.02.21	584 ²	12.05.21
Gordon—Antisocial behaviour	Ms Lawder	10.11.21	49	
Gordon—Traffic management plan	Mr Davis	02.06.21	52 ^{1,3}	16.09.21
Gungahlin Town Centre— Suspension of land auctions/sales	Mr Braddock	03.08.21	714 ^{1,2}	10.11.21
Hackett Shops—Public toilet facility	Ms Vassarotti	09.11.21	50 ¹	
Human Rights Act— Breaches—Handling of complaints	Dr Paterson	23.11.21	518 ^{1,2}	
Kippax Fair—Expansion	Mrs Kikkert	30.03.21	781 ²	22.06.21
Lyons Shops—Upgrades	Mrs Jones	08.10.21	442	

Subject	Member	Date	No of signatures	Ministerial Response
Melba recreational space	Ms Clay	09.11.21	251 ^{1,4}	
Monumental women	Ms Orr	02.06.21	223 ^{1,3}	16.09.21
Nicholls enclosed oval— Upgrade to amenities	Mr Pettersson	03.08.21	509 ^{1,2}	09.11.21
Phillip pool	Mrs Jones	30.11.21	374 ^{1,4}	
Phillip pool	Mrs Jones	30.11.21	115 ⁴	
Public housing—Maintenance	Mr Parton	16.09.21	14	01.12.21
Red Hill Integrated Plan	Mrs Jones	03.08.21	1527 ^{1,2}	02.12.21
Red Hill Integrated Plan	Mrs Jones	04.08.21	201	02.12.21
Theodore—Traffic safety	Mr Parton	22.06.21	278 ^{1,3}	16.09.21
Theodore—Traffic safety	Mr Parton	22.06.21	31 ³	16.09.21
Thoroughbred Park— Withdrawal of public funding	Ms Clay	02.12.20	674 ^{1,2}	30.03.21
Waramanga playing fields— Lighting	Dr Paterson	09.11.21	149²	
Waramanga playing fields— Lighting	Dr Paterson	09.11.21	406 ^{1,2}	
Woden Town Centre— Multi-purpose indoor sports stadium	Ms Davidson	30.11.21	1271 ^{1,2}	
Woden Town Centre— Multi-purpose indoor sports stadium	Ms Davidson	01.12.21	694²	
Yerrabi Pond	Mr Pettersson	20.04.21	601 ^{1,2}	03.08.21
Yerrabi Pond	Mr Pettersson	23.04.21	508 ²	03.08.21

¹ Denotes e-petition.

² Referred to committee, pursuant to standing order 99A (Amended on 29 November 2018 to allow more than one petition, in similar terms, and totalling at least 500 signatures, to be referred to relevant standing committee for consideration).

³ Referred to committee, pursuant to standing order 99.

⁴ Referred to committee, by leave

MINISTERIAL RESPONSES TO PETITIONS PRESENTED IN NINTH ASSEMBLY

Subject	Date petition presented	Ministerial response
Chisholm Village—Proposed development	13.08.20	02.12.20
Farrer—Nature play toilet facilities	13.08.20	02.12.20
Farrer—Nature play toilet facilities	13.08.20	02.12.20
Fraser West—Bus terminus	27.08.20	02.12.20
Fyshwick—Proposed waste processing facilities	27.08.20	02.12.20
Live in Ya Lounge—Funding	27.08.20	02.12.20
Off-leash dog park—Campbell	20.08.20	02.12.20
Off-leash dog park—Kingston foreshore	20.08.20	02.12.20
Symonston—Reinstatement of bus services	13.08.20	02.12.20
Turner—Proposed bus layover	27.08.20	02.12.20
Watson shops—Traffic flow	27.08.20	02.12.20
Watson shops—Disability parking	27.08.20	02.12.20
West Belconnen—Waste facility	27.08.20	02.12.20

OTHER BUSINESS

Absence of Clerk (22 April 2021).

Assembly meeting in accordance with notice fixed by Speaker on request from an absolute majority of Members (16 September 2021).

Assistant Speakers—Warrants of nomination presented (2 December 2020).

Australian Capital Territory Legislative Assembly Members Superannuation Board—Election of—

Government board member (8 October 2021).

Alternate Government board member (8 October 2021).

Opposition board member (8 October 2021).

Alternate Opposition board member (8 October 2021).

Election of—

Speaker (3 November 2020).

Chief Minister (3 November 2020).

Deputy Speaker (3 November 2020).

Members-

Inaugural speeches—

Mr Andrew Braddock (3 December 2020).

Mr Peter Cain (2 December 2020).

Ms Leanne Castley (2 December 2020).

Ms Jo Clay (3 December 2020).

Ms Emma Davidson (2 December 2020).

Mr Johnathan Davis (3 December 2020).

Dr Marisa Paterson (3 December 2020).

Ms Rebecca Vassarotti (2 December 2020).

APPENDIX

LIST OF MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE ROLL 3 NOVEMBER 2020 TO 2 DECEMBER 2021 (36 SITTING DAYS)

Name	Party	Days Present	Days Absent
Barr, Andrew	ACT Labor	36	-
Berry, Yvette	ACT Labor	32	4 ⁽¹⁾
Braddock, Andrew	The ACT Greens	34	2 ⁽¹⁾
Burch, Joy	ACT Labor	36	-
Cain, Peter	Canberra Liberals	36	-
Castley, Leanne	Canberra Liberals	36	-
Cheyne, Tara	ACT Labor	36	-
Clay, Jo	The ACT Greens	36	-
Coe, Alistair ²	Canberra Liberals	35	1 ⁽¹⁾
Davidson, Emma	The ACT Greens	36	-
Davis, Johnathan	The ACT Greens	36	-
Gentleman, Mick	ACT Labor	36	-
Hanson, Jeremy	Canberra Liberals	35	1 ⁽¹⁾
Jones, Giulia	Canberra Liberals	34	2 ⁽¹⁾
Kikkert, Elizabeth	Canberra Liberals	36	-
Lawder, Nicole	Canberra Liberals	30	6 ⁽¹⁾
Lee, Elizabeth	Canberra Liberals	30	6 ⁽¹⁾
Milligan, James ³	Canberra Liberals	34	2 ⁽¹⁾
Orr, Suzanne	ACT Labor	36	-
Parton, Mark	Canberra Liberals	36	-
Paterson, Marisa	ACT Labor	34	2 ⁽¹⁾
Pettersson, Michael	ACT Labor	36	-
Rattenbury, Shane	The ACT Greens	36	-
Steel, Chris	ACT Labor	35	1 ⁽¹⁾
Stephen-Smith, Rachel	ACT Labor	36	-
Vassarotti, Rebecca	The ACT Greens	36	

⁽¹⁾ Period of leave granted by the Assembly.

⁽²⁾ Resigned 12 March 2021.

⁽³⁾ Elected 26 March 2021.